# Final Board Approved 9-23-2013

# **AGREEMENT**

# Between the

# Board of Education School District 156, Cook County, Illinois

# and

Lincoln Council
Southwest Suburban Federation of
Paraprofessionals
AFT Local 943, IFT/AFL-CIO

2013-2016

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE 1	RECOGNITION	1
ARTICLE 2	UNION AND PARAPROFESSIONAL RIGHTS	2
2.1	Non-discrimination2	
2.2	Board Information2	
2.3	Use of School Equipment2	
2.4	Dues Authorization	
2.5	School Board Summary3	
2.6	Fair Share	
ARTICLE 3	WORKING CONDITIONS	6
3.1	School Year6	
3.2	Work Day6	
3.3	Employee Discipline6	
3.4	Safe Educational Working Environment6	
3.5	Parent Conferences/Institute Days6	
3.6	Employee Protection6	
ARTICLE 4	SENIORITY / REDUCTION-IN-FORCE	7
4.1	Definition7	
4.2	Equal Seniority7	
4.3	Seniority List7	
4.4	Credentials Update7	
4.5	Reduction-in-Force (RIF) Procedures	
ARTICLE 5	INVOLUNTARY TRANSFER & POSTING OF VACANCIES	9
5.1	Definition9	
5.2	Procedures9	
5.3	Posting of Vacancies9	
ARTICLE 6	EXTRA-DUTY ASSIGNMENTS	10
6.1	Extra-Duty Pay Schedule10	
6.2	Extra-Duty Compensation10	

ARTICLE 7	PERSONNEL FILE	11
7.1	Right to Review File11	
7.2	File Contents11	
7.3	Number of Files11	
7.4	Anonymous Material11	
7.5	Accuracy of Material12	
ARTICLE 8	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES	13
8.1	Definition13	
8.2	General Provisions	
8.3	Procedure for Adjustment of Grievance	
ARTICLE 9	LEAVES OF ABSENCE	15
9.1	Sick Leave Days15	
9.2	Personal Business Days15	
9.3	Bereavement16	
9.4	Jury Duty / Subpoenaed Witness16	
9.5	Sick Leave Donation	
ARTICLE 10	EVALUATION	18
10.1	Probationary Period	
ARTICLE 11	SALARY	19
11.1	Salary Schedule	
11.2	Previous Experience	
11.3	Professional Growth	
ARTICLE 12	INSURANCE	20
12.1	Insurance	
12.2	Property Liability20	
ARTICLE 13	S TERMS OF AGREEMENT	21
13.1	Duration21	
13.2	Savings Clause21	
13.3	No strike21	
SALADV SC	HEDIII ES	22-24

#### **ARTICLE 1- RECOGNITION**

- 1.1 The Board of Education, School District #156 Cook County, hereinafter referred to as the BOARD, recognizes the Lincoln Council, Local #943, IFT, AFT, AFL-CIO, hereinafter referred to as the UNION, as the exclusive bargaining agent for all regularly contracted paraprofessionals. Paraprofessionals as referred to in this agreement shall be identified as full time teacher aides.
- 1.2 The School Board shall not enter into any verbal or written agreements with members of the bargaining unit without involvement of the Union officers.
- 1.3 Definition of the word "day" all reference to the word "day" shall mean days when school is in session, and calendar days during the summer months.

#### ARTICLE 2 - UNION AND PARAPROFESSIONAL RIGHTS

#### 2.1 Non-discrimination

It is the policy of the Lincoln School District 156 Board that all employees be able to enjoy a work environment free from discrimination and harassment based on race, age, national origin, gender, religion, sexual harassment, or other characteristics covered by Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended, the Illinois Human Rights Act and the Cook County Human Rights Ordinance. In addition, the Board agrees not to discriminate against any paraprofessional on the basis of membership in the Union.

# 2.2 Board Information

The Board shall provide the Union president with the following documents:

- A. Board agendas
- B. Official minutes of the Board including all attachments of each school board meeting.
- C. Notices of all Board meetings and Board committee meetings must be received by the Union president no later than twenty-four (24) hours before said meetings.

Upon request, the Board shall provide the Union president with the following documents:

- A. Board Policy Provided Online
- B. Annual auditor's report
- C. Current Fiscal year budget
- D. Statistical information (excluding names) pertaining to paraprofessionals placement on the salary schedule, extended service placement and present insurance coverage.

#### 2.3 Use of School Equipment

The Union shall have access to mailboxes and bulletin board in the teachers' lounge to distribute and post authorized Union literature. No person except a Union designee shall add or remove such material from the bulletin board.

#### 2.4 <u>Dues Authorization</u>

A. Upon joining the Union, each paraprofessional shall sign a dues authorization. This authorization shall be in effect for the duration of the member's employment unless written notice of revocation is given by the employee to the employer. Revocation shall become effective thirty (30) days after such notice is given.

B. The dues and a list of employees from whom the dues have been deducted shall be forwarded to the proper Union officer no later than fifteen (15) days after each deduction.

#### 2.5 School Board Summary

All paraprofessionals shall receive from the Superintendent's office an unofficial summary of the Board meetings within five (5) working days.

In order to keep paraprofessionals informed of existing and new policies that pertain to staff, two (2) copies of each summarized document shall be given to the Union president. The Union president or designee shall see to it that one copy is made available to the staff in a central location.

#### 2.6 Fair Share

- A. Fair Share Payment shall become effective as of the effective date of this agreement. If a Union member should withdraw from the Union, he/she then becomes subject to Fair Share.
- B. Non-members of the Union shall pay to the Union each month their fair share of the costs of the services rendered by the Union that are chargeable to non-members under state and federal law.
- C. Such fair share payment by non-members shall be deducted by the Board from the earnings of the non-member employees and remitted to the Union, provided, however, that the Union shall submit to the Board an affidavit which specifies the amount constituting said fair share not exceeding the dues uniformly required of members of the Union and which describes the rationale and method by which share was determined, including a description of the expenditures which were excluded in determining fair share.
- D. Upon receipt of said affidavit, the Board shall cooperate with the Union to ascertain the names of all employee non-members of the Union from whose earning the fair share payments shall be deducted and available space to post a notice concerning fair share.
- E. The Union shall cause to be posted a notice containing the fair share fee information specified in Section C above, advising that any non-member may object to the amount of the fee: 1) through the Union's internal appeal procedure by sending a letter to the Union president by certified or registered mail at any time after the notice but within thirty (30) days after the first salary payment of the school year from which his/her fair share has been deducted; 2) by filing a fair share objection with the Illinois Education Labor Relations Board, or 3) by taking any other action available to them by law.

- F. A copy of the Union internal appeal procedure of any objector's claims shall be supplied to the Board. The Union shall advise the Board of any subsequent changes therein.
- G. Upon receipt of formal notice of an objection and unfair labor practice charge to the Illinois Education Labor Relations Labor Board (IELRB), the Union and the Lincoln Board of Education hereby agree to comply with the IELRB Labor Board rules. The Lincoln Board of Education shall forward the objector's fee or portion of the objector's fees being contested to the IELRB Labor Board to be placed in an escrow account pending a decision or mutually agreeable settlement between the Union and the objector(s).
- H. Upon the Union's receipt of notice of an objector's invocation of the internal appeal procedure described above or other action available by law without prescribed escrow procedures, the Union shall deposit in an escrow account, separate from all other Union funds, the amount of fee payments received on behalf of any objector or objectors that is fairly placed at issue by the objection(s). Upon written request, the Union shall furnish objectors and the Lincoln Board of Education with verification of the terms of the escrow arrangement and, upon request, the status of the fund as reported by the bank or trust company.

The escrow fund will be established and maintained by a reputable independent bank or trust company and the agreement therefore shall provide that the escrow accounts be interest-bearing at the highest available rate; that the escrowed funds be outside the Union's control until the final deposition as provided for herein; and that the escrow fund will terminate and the fund therein be distributed only by the terms of an ultimate award, determination or judgment including any appeals or by the terms of a mutually agreeable settlement between the Union and an objector or group of objectors.

- I. If an ultimate decision in any proceeding hereunder directs that the amount of the fair share fee should be lower than the amount fixed by the Union, the Union shall promptly adopt said determination and notify the Lincoln Board of Education to reduce deductions from the earnings on non-members to said prescribed amount.
- J. The Union shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Lincoln Board of Education, its members, officers, agents and employees from and against any and all claims, demands, actions, complaints, suits or other forms of liability that shall arise out of or by reason of action taken by the Lincoln Board of Education for the purposes of complying with the above provisions of this Article, or in reliance on any list, notice, certification, affidavit or assignment furnished under such provisions.

K. If, during the terms of the Agreement, the IELRB Labor Board of a court of competent jurisdiction rules any part of this Article void or not enforceable, the Union and Lincoln Board of Education agree to convene negotiations on this matter immediately for the sole purpose of bringing the Article into compliance with the standards or rulings of said IELRB Labor Board or court.

#### **ARTICLE 3 - WORKING CONDITIONS**

#### 3.1 School Year

The school year for all paraprofessionals shall consist of one hundred eighty (180) attendance days. Although the school calendar must provide one hundred eighty-five (185) days, sufficient holidays will be given, or the closing of school adjusted, to insure that one hundred eighty (180) attendance days shall not be exceeded.

#### 3.2 Work Day

The work day shall be from 8:15 a.m. to 2:45 p.m. Work day will be defined as the time in which staff is prepared to perform the duties assigned to them. This time shall include a duty-free lunch period, equal to that of students, and not less than thirty (30) minutes per day.

# 3.3 Employee Discipline

The administration will make every effort to respect the rights of individual employees to be disciplined in private and will follow a progressive discipline policy as appropriate.

#### 3.4 <u>Safe Educational Working Environment</u>

One position on the joint Discipline Committee shall be available for a paraprofessional.

#### 3.5 Parent Conferences/Institute Days

Paraprofessionals will work the same schedule as the teachers on Parent Conferences and Institute Days.

# 3.6 Employee Protection

Any case of assault on a paraprofessional shall be promptly reported to the School Principal.

#### ARTICLE 4 - SENIORITY / REDUCTION-IN-FORCE

#### 4.1 Definition

Seniority shall be defined as the number of consecutive years of continuous service to the District. The following criteria shall be used in determining District seniority.

- A. Seniority rights and continuous service shall begin from the first day the paraprofessional is paid for his/her duties.
- B. Approved leaves of absence (unpaid) shall not interrupt the consecutive years of continuous service in the District, and will not count as time served.

#### 4.2 Equal Seniority

If the District seniority is equal between two or more paraprofessionals as determined above, the date and time indicated on the letter of intent shall be the determining factor, subject to approval by the Board of Education.

#### 4.3 Seniority List

By December 15th, the Administration shall furnish the Union with a District seniority list. This list shall be updated monthly as paraprofessionals leave the District and/or are hired by the District during the school year.

#### 4.4 <u>Credentials Update</u>

The employee bears the responsibility to update his/her licensure and to present proof of additional licenses. The employee must notify the Administration by October 15th.

# 4.5 Reduction-in-Force (RIF) Procedures

- A. Bargaining unit members who are terminated because of a decision of the school board to decrease the number of paraprofessionals employed by the Board shall be reduced in accordance with their seniority.
- B. Employees who are removed or dismissed due to a reduction in force will be given written notice, together with a letter of honorable dismissal and the reason therefore, by certified mail, return receipt requested, or personal delivery with receipt, at least thirty (30) days before the employee is removed or dismissed.
- C. If a vacancy occurs for the following school term or within one (1) calendar year from the beginning of the school term following a staff reduction, the Board shall first offer re-employment to the bargaining unit member(s) laid off in the reverse order of reduction. A bargaining unit member so recalled shall not be deemed to

have suffered a break in employment as a result of the RIF, but the bargaining unit member shall not accrue any benefits, including seniority, for the period of reduction.

Notice of recall shall be sent to the bargaining unit member by certified mail (return receipt requested) to the last address submitted to the Board by the bargaining unit member. The bargaining unit member must notify the Board in writing, within fifteen (15) calendar days of mailing or within five (5) calendar days of receipt of the offer, whichever shall occur first, of the acceptance of or rejection of the position tendered to the bargaining unit member during the recall period. Any bargaining unit member who fails to notify the Board of his/her acceptance or rejection of a tendered position with the time lines set forth above shall be deemed to have waived his or her recall rights and will no longer be eligible for any other vacant positions that become available within the recall period. A bargaining unit member's recall rights will be extinguished once he/she accepts or rejects any tendered vacant position.

#### ARTICLE 5 - INVOLUNTARY TRANSFER & POSTING OF VACANCIES

#### 5.1 Definition

Involuntary transfer occurs when there is a relocation of staff personnel against their will or for which they did not request due to pupil distribution, certification requirements or RIF.

#### 5.2 Procedures

When it is necessary to transfer paraprofessionals, all volunteers meeting certification qualification, merit and ability, and relevant experience requirements will be considered.

#### 5.3 Posting of Vacancies

- A. The District shall post positions within three (3) days as they become available. Notices shall be shall be posted electronically as well as in the teachers' lounge and school office. These positions will be held open for at least five (5) working days during the school year.
  - During the summer months, paraprofessionals interested in changing positions for the next school year shall notify the Principal, Superintendent and Union in writing before the end of each current school year.
- B. New or vacant posted positions shall include a job description and/or a listing of job responsibilities. The Union President will be given a copy of each posting.
- C. Application Procedure Any employee is eligible to apply for a vacancy or newly created position, and any employee shall have the right to meet with the Principal or designee to discuss his/her qualifications and interest in the position.
- D. Applicants from District 156 shall be notified, in writing, following Board or Administration action to fill such position.

#### **ARTICLE 6 - EXTRA-DUTY ASSIGNMENTS**

# 6.1 Extra-Duty Pay Schedule

- A. All extra duty compensation time sheets must be submitted in order for compensation to be paid.
- B. A copy of the approved extra-duty time sheet shall be given to the paraprofessional by the 2<sup>nd</sup> pay period after submission.

# 6.2 Extra-Duty Compensation

Extra duty positions may be offered to paraprofessionals. Compensation for extra duty shall be at the rate of \$15.50 per hour for all hourly services and at the stipend established by the district for all others (i.e. coaching, etc.).

#### **ARTICLE 7 - PERSONNEL FILE**

#### 7.1 Right to Review File

Each paraprofessional shall have the right, upon request, to review and copy the contents of his/her personnel file. An appointment is to be made with the Administration. The personnel file will not leave the office.

#### 7.2 File Contents

Each paraprofessional's personnel file may contain the following minimum items of information:

- A. required medical information
- B. evaluation forms
- C. copies of annual contracts of notification of re-employment
- D. copies of supplemental duty contracts
- E. college transcripts and records
- F. any materials relative to a paraprofessional's professional performance or service may be included in the file, providing a copy is given to the paraprofessional. Such material must be originated by an administrator or attached to a document originated by an administrator. Any item to be placed in the paraprofessionals file which might negatively affect his/her continued employment shall be placed in the file, and the paraprofessional shall be requested to sign and date a copy of the same. A paraprofessional's signature shall not necessarily mean agreement with what has been written, but rather shall only indicate the paraprofessional's awareness of the material to be filed. The paraprofessional may respond in writing and that response shall become part of the personnel file.

#### 7.3 Number of Files

There shall be only one (1) personnel file. However, in accordance with federal and state laws, documents related to a paraprofessional's medical conditions, requests for family or medical leave, and requests for reasonable accommodations of a disability will be kept in a separate location from the rest of the paraprofessional's personnel file. Upon a paraprofessional's request to review or copy his/her personnel file, the paraprofessional will be provided with the entire file including the documents maintained separately.

#### 7.4 Anonymous Material

Anonymous material may not be placed in the file.

# 7.5 Accuracy of Material

At the paraprofessional's request, any material proved to be erroneous shall be removed from the file and no copies of this material shall be kept. Any paraprofessional has the right to place material in his/her personnel file dealing with his/her professional growth.

#### ARTICLE 8 - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

#### 8.1 <u>Definition</u>

A grievance shall mean a complaint that there has been a violation, misrepresentation or inequitable application of any of the provisions of this Agreement or inequitably according to established policy or practices governing or affecting paraprofessionals.

#### 8.2 General Provisions

- A. No paraprofessional at any stage of the Grievance Procedure will be required to meet with any administrator without a Union representative.
- B. If a grievance arises from the action of authority higher than the Principal of a school, the Union may present such grievances at the appropriate steps of the grievance procedure.
- C. A paraprofessional who participates in the grievance procedure shall not be subjected to disciplinary action or reprisal because of such participation.
- D. The administration has the responsibility to consider and take action promptly, within authority delegated to them, on grievances presented to them.
- E. Failure to comply with any steps of this procedure to communicate the decision of the grievance within the specified time limits shall permit lodging an appeal at the next step of this procedure within the time allotted had the decision been given.
- F. Conferences held under this procedure shall be considered at a time and place which will afford a fair and reasonable opportunity for all persons entitled to be present to attend.
- G. All time limits may be extended by mutual agreement between the parties.
- H. Copies of the grievance and any correspondence relating to the grievance shall not be included in a paraprofessional's personnel file.

#### 8.3 Procedure for Adjustment of Grievance

A. Step 1 -- In the event the matter is not resolved informally, the grievant or the Union shall present a written statement within ten (10) days of the alleged violation to the principal or his/her appropriate administrator. The principal shall, within ten (10) days of the receipt of the grievance, confer with the grievant and/or his/her representative to try to resolve the grievance. Within five (5) days after the completion of the conference, the Principal shall give his/her written decision to the grievant with a copy to the Union president.

- B. Step 2 -- In the event the grievance has not been resolved in the first step, the Union or the paraprofessional may file an appeal to the Superintendent or designee. The appeal shall be made within five (5) days of the receipt of the Principal's decision. Within five (5) days of the receipt of the appeal, the Superintendent or designee shall confer with the Union and the grievant in an effort to resolve the grievance. The Superintendent, within five (5) days following the conference, shall file his/her written decision to the grievant and the Union president.
- C. Step 3 -- In the event the grievance is not resolved in the second step, the Union or the paraprofessional may submit a written appeal to the Board. Such appeal shall be made within fifteen (15) days. Following the receipt of the appeal, the Board shall meet with the Union and/or grievant. Within fifteen (15) days following the meeting, the Board shall communicate its decision in writing to the Union and the grievant.
- D. Step 4 -- Within thirty (30) days following the receipt of the Board's decision, the Union may submit the grievance to the American Arbitration Association (AAA) under the Voluntary Labor Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association. Expenses for the arbitration services shall be borne equally by the Board and the Union. When such hearings and conferences are held during school hours, all bargaining unit members whose presence is required shall be excused, with regular pay, for the purpose of attending. A paraprofessional shall not be required to use either his/her personal or sick days.

#### ARTICLE 9 - LEAVES OF ABSENCE

#### 9.1 Sick Leave Days

- A. Each full time paraprofessional shall be granted twelve (12) sick-leave days per year without loss of pay, utilizing an accrual system as follows:
  - 3 sick days available at the beginning of the school year;
  - 3 more sick days available at the end of the 2nd pay period;
  - 3 more sick days available at the end of the 4th pay period;
  - 3 more sick days available at the end of the 6th pay period;
- B. Each full time paraprofessional with ten (10) or more years of District experience shall be granted thirteen (13) sick-leave days per year without loss of pay. The days shall be accrued as stated in Section 9.1A.

If additional days are needed prior to accrual, these days can be granted based upon approval by Board or its designee. Denial by the Board or its designee for the use of accrual sick leave time also denies the use of the Sick Leave Donation.

Any unused sick-leave days shall be accumulated.

Use of sick-leave days shall be for personal illness, confining injury or quarantine or illness in the immediate family or household.

The School Board may require a physician's certificate or, if treatment is by prayer or spiritual means, that of a spiritual advisor or practitioner of such person's faith as a basis for pay during an absence of three (3) days of personal illness or as it may deem necessary in other cases.

Employees shall be notified in writing as to the current number of accumulated sick leave days.

# 9.2 Personal Business Days

- A. Each full-time paraprofessional shall be granted two (2) personal business days leave per year, without deduction in pay, for the purpose of transacting or attending to personal business. Unused days shall accumulate as sick days.
- B. Request for leave shall be made at least three (3) days before leave is needed (except in a verifiable emergency) and submitted to the Principal for approval. Since leave is of a personal nature, a reason shall not be stated.
- C. Personal business days may not be granted for the day preceding or following holidays or vacations and the first day and the last day of the school year. Days taken without permission are subject to a deduction of one day's pay.

#### 9.3 Bereavement

Leave and bereavement shall not be cumulative, but based on occurrences. All teachers shall be allowed up to five (5) days absence without loss of pay, for the death of a member of the immediate family (parent or person in loco parentis, spouse, child, brother, sister, mother-in-law, father-in-law), or domestic partner. Up to three (3) days absence, without loss of pay, shall be granted for the death of a grandmother, grandfather, grandchild, niece or nephew. For other relatives not in the immediate family, a teacher shall be granted a one (1) day absence without loss of pay. The use of such leave will not cause any reduction in sick leave days or personal business days. Upon request, proof may be required.

To be eligible for use of bereavement leave for qualified domestic partners, bargaining unit members must file an affidavit with the Superintendent which meets the following conditions:

- They are each other's sole domestic partner, responsible for each other's common welfare:
- Neither party is legally married to another individual;
- ◆ The partners are not related by blood or any closer than would bar marriage in the state of Illinois;
- Each partner resides at the same residence;
- Two of the following conditions exist for the partners:
  - 1. The partners have been residing together for at least twelve (12) months prior to filing the affidavit of domestic partnership;
  - 2. The partners have common joint ownership of a residence;
  - 3. The bargaining unit member declares that the domestic partner is identified as a primary beneficiary in the bargaining unit member's will;
  - 4. The partners have at least two of the following: (a) joint ownership of a vehicle, (b) joint credit account, (c) joint checking account, or (d) lease for a residence identifying both domestic partners as tenants.

#### 9.4 Jury Duty / Subpoenaed Witness

- A. A paraprofessional required to serve on jury duty or appear as a subpoenaed witness for school legal matters and/or grievance procedure shall receive compensation from the School District as though he/she were present to fulfill his/her contractual agreement. Any compensation received for transportation or meals shall be retained by the paraprofessional. Any other compensation shall be returned to the district.
- B. Paraprofessionals so affected will he required to furnish verification of the days served on jury duty or as a subpoenaed witness. Said absences shall not be deducted from the employee's leave days.

#### 9.5 Sick Leave Donation

If the need arises for an employee to use additional sick days, the Board or its designee and the Union agree to activate the Sick Leave Donation policy from the members' accumulated sick days following these guidelines:

- A. Any paraprofessional who has been employed for at least one year is eligible for sick leave donation days.
- B. Donation of days is on a voluntary basis
- C. Use of the sick leave donation shall be for personal illness, confining injury or quarantine, or illness in the immediate family or household
- D. Tally will be conducted as follows:
  - 1. Tally will begin in the order of submission.
  - 2. Each bargaining unit member submitting a contribution of more than one day will be charged only one day on the first tally.
  - 3. If after the first tally additional days are needed to fulfill the respective member's request, then the tally will again be conducted in the order of submission of multiple day contribution forms charging only one day from each submission. This process will be repeated until the request is fulfilled.

#### ARTICLE 10 – EVALUATION AND PROBATIONARY PERIOD

#### 10.1 A. Probationary Period

The first year employed as a paraprofessional shall be the probationary period.

#### B. Evaluations

Each paraprofessional will have a formal written evaluation twice every year, as long as deemed appropriate by the administration. The evaluation will be done by the paraprofessional's supervisor with input from the teacher(s) with whom they work. The evaluation shall identify employee strengths and weaknesses and it may contain suggestions for improvement. Supervisors shall endeavor to provide an employee with reasonable advice and assistance to help the employee to correct identified deficiencies in the employee's work performance.

After each formal written evaluation, the evaluator will meet with the employee to discuss the evaluation. All copies of the written evaluation will be signed and dated by the employee indicating said evaluation has been discussed but not necessarily agreed to. A copy of the evaluation will be placed in the employee's personnel file.

#### **ARTICLE 11 - SALARY**

#### 11.1 Salary Schedule

A. The following salary schedules exist for this contract.

2013 – 2014 4% to salary schedule 2014 – 2015 3% to salary schedule 2015 – 2016 3% to salary schedule

# 11.2 Previous Experience

Paraprofessional experience elsewhere shall be given full value to total seven (7) years. A total of eight (8) years experience shall be given to those who have completed ten (10) or more years as a paraprofessional.

# 11.3 Professional Growth

An official letter showing completion of course work (with an official transcript showing credit to be filed as soon as possible) should be on file at Lincoln Elementary School by October 1st to receive a full year's increase in salary or by February 1st to receive a half year's increase in salary.

#### **ARTICLE 12 - INSURANCE**

#### 12.1 Insurance

The Board agrees to provide the district's medical, dental and life insurance coverage as needed to full time paraprofessionals for full cost of Single coverage.

An Insurance Committee consisting of all stakeholders will be formed with the intent of making recommendations regarding cost of co-pays, prescriptions, etc. in order to offset the increase in premium costs above 12%.

# 12.2 Property Liability

The District and the Union will utilize a committee structure, consisting of all stakeholders, with a mandate to address property liability and safety.

#### **ARTICLE 13 - TERMS OF AGREEMENT**

4	$\sim$	4	T-	
ı	3	- 1	1 )117	ation
r	J		νu	auvu

This Agreement will be effective as of August 2013 and shall remain in effect until the day immediately preceding the beginning of the 2016-2017 school year.

# 13.2 Savings Clause

Should any article, section or clause of this agreement be declared illegal, said article, section or clause shall be automatically deleted from this agreement to the extent that it violates the law. The remaining articles, sections and clauses shall remain in full force and effect for the duration of the agreement if not affected by the deleted article, section or clause.

#### 13.3 No Strike

The UNION	agrees	that it	will not	strike	during	the term	of this	Agreement.

For the Board of Education	For the Lincoln Council
Lincoln School District #156	Local #943, IFT/AFT/AFL-CIO

# SALARY SCHEDULES 2013-2016

Page 23
<u>Lincoln ESD 156 Paraprofessional Salary Schedule Comparison FY13 and FY14</u>

2012-2013	30	60	90
Step 1	\$12,598	\$13,171	\$13,744
Step 2	\$12,850	\$13,434	\$14,018
Step 3	\$13,107	\$13,703	\$14,299
Step 4	\$13,369	\$13,977	\$14,585
Step 5	\$13,637	\$14,257	\$14,876
Step 6	\$13,909	\$14,542	\$15,174
Step 7	\$14,188	\$14,833	\$15,477
Step 8	\$14,471	\$15,129	\$15,787
Step 9	\$14,761	\$15,432	\$16,103
Step 10	\$15,056	\$15,740	\$16,425
Step 11	\$15,357	\$16,055	\$16,753
Step 12	\$15,664	\$16,376	\$17,088
Step 13	\$15,978	\$16,704	\$17,430
Step 14	\$16,297	\$17,038	\$17,779
Step 15	\$16,623	\$17,379	\$18,134
Step 16	\$16,956	\$17,726	\$18,497
Step 17	\$17,295	\$18,081	\$18,867
Step 18	\$17,641	\$18,442	\$19,244
Step 19	\$17,993	\$18,811	\$19,629
Step 20	\$18,353	\$19,187	\$20,022
Step 21	\$18,720	\$19,571	\$20,422
Step 22	\$19,095	\$19,963	\$20,831

2013-14	30	60	90
Step 1	\$13,102	\$13,698	\$14,294
Step 2	\$13,364	\$13,971	\$14,579
Step 3	\$13,631	\$14,251	\$14,871
Step 4	\$13,904	\$14,536	\$15,168
Step 5	\$14,182	\$14,827	\$15,471
Step 6	\$14,465	\$15,124	\$15,781
Step 7	\$14,756	\$15,426	\$16,096
Step 8	\$15,050	\$15,734	\$16,418
Step 9	\$15,351	\$16,049	\$16,747
Step 10	\$15,658	\$16,370	\$17,082
Step 11	\$15,971	\$16,697	\$17,423
Step 12	\$16,291	\$17,031	\$17,772
Step 13	\$16,617	\$17,372	\$18,127
Step 14	\$16,949	\$17,720	\$18,490
Step 15	\$17,288	\$18,074	\$18,859
Step 16	\$17,634	\$18,435	\$19,237
Step 17	\$17,987	\$18,804	\$19,622
Step 18	\$18,347	\$19,180	\$20,014
Step 19	\$18,713	\$19,563	\$20,414
Step 20	\$19,087	\$19,954	\$20,823
Step 21	\$19,469	\$20,354	\$21,239
Step 22	\$19,859	\$20,762	\$21,664

Page 24
Lincoln ESD 156 Paraprofessional Salary Schedule Comparison FY15 and FY16

2014-15	30	60	90
Step 1	\$13,495	\$14,109	\$14,723
Step 2	\$13,765	\$14,391	\$15,016
Step 3	\$14,040	\$14,679	\$15,317
Step 4	\$14,321	\$14,972	\$15,623
Step 5	\$14,608	\$15,272	\$15,935
Step 6	\$14,899	\$15,577	\$16,254
Step 7	\$15,198	\$15,889	\$16,579
Step 8	\$15,501	\$16,206	\$16,911
Step 9	\$15,812	\$16,531	\$17,250
Step 10	\$16,128	\$16,861	\$17,594
Step 11	\$16,450	\$17,198	\$17,946
Step 12	\$16,779	\$17,542	\$18,305
Step 13	\$17,116	\$17,893	\$18,671
Step 14	\$17,457	\$18,251	\$19,045
Step 15	\$17,807	\$18,616	\$19,425
Step 16	\$18,163	\$18,988	\$19,814
Step 17	\$18,526	\$19,368	\$20,210
Step 18	\$18,897	\$19,755	\$20,614
Step 19	\$19,274	\$20,150	\$21,027
Step 20	\$19,660	\$20,553	\$21,448
Step 21	\$20,053	\$20,964	\$21,876
Step 22	\$20,455	\$21,384	\$22,314

2015-16	30	60	90
Step 1	\$13,900	\$14,532	\$15,164
Step 2	\$14,178	\$14,822	\$15,467
Step 3	\$14,461	\$15,119	\$15,777
Step 4	\$14,750	\$15,421	\$16,092
Step 5	\$15,046	\$15,730	\$16,413
Step 6	\$15,346	\$16,045	\$16,742
Step 7	\$15,654	\$16,366	\$17,076
Step 8	\$15,966	\$16,692	\$17,418
Step 9	\$16,286	\$17,027	\$17,767
Step 10	\$16,612	\$17,367	\$18,122
Step 11	\$16,944	\$17,714	\$18,484
Step 12	\$17,283	\$18,068	\$18,854
Step 13	\$17,629	\$18,430	\$19,231
Step 14	\$17,981	\$18,799	\$19,616
Step 15	\$18,341	\$19,175	\$20,008
Step 16	\$18,708	\$19,558	\$20,408
Step 17	\$19,082	\$19,949	\$20,817
Step 18	\$19,464	\$20,348	\$21,233
Step 19	\$19,852	\$20,755	\$21,657
Step 20	\$20,250	\$21,170	\$22,091
Step 21	\$20,654	\$21,593	\$22,532
Step 22	\$21,068	\$22,026	\$22,984